
 
 

Planning Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: Wednesday, 14th December, 2022 
Time: 11.00 am 
Venue: Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath 
 
Agenda 
 
 

To: All Members of the Planning Committee 
 

Councillors:- Sue Craig, Sally Davis, Paul Crossley, Lucy Hodge, Duncan Hounsell, 
Shaun Hughes, Dr Eleanor Jackson, Hal MacFie, Ruth Malloy and Brian Simmons 
Permanent Substitutes:- Councillors: Rob Appleyard, Vic Clarke, Michael Evans, 
Andrew Furse, Liz Hardman, Vic Pritchard, Matt McCabe, Manda Rigby and Ryan Wills 
 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corrina Haskins
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG 
Telephone: 01225 39 4435
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk 
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk



NOTES: 
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows: 
 
Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 
 
Paper copies are available for inspection at the Guildhall - Bath. 
 
2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above.  
 
3. Recording at Meetings:- 
 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording 
by anyone attending a meeting.  This is not within the Council’s control.  Some of our meetings 
are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to 
be filmed.  If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please make yourself known to 
the camera operators.  We request that those filming/recording meetings avoid filming public 
seating areas, children, vulnerable people etc; however, the Council cannot guarantee this will 
happen. 
 
The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its 
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters. 
 
4. Public Speaking at Meetings 
 
The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.  
 
Advance notice is required not less than two working days before the meeting. This 
means that for Planning Committee meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must be 
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday.  
 
Further details of the scheme can be found at: 
 
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942 
 
5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated 
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted. 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 
6. Supplementary information for meetings 
 
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings 
 
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505 
 

 
 
 

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


Planning Committee- Wednesday, 14th December, 2022 
 

at 11.00 am in the Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath 
 

A G E N D A 
  

1.   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 The Democratic Services Officer will draw attention to the emergency evacuation 
procedure. 

 
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 

(a) The agenda item number and site in which they have an interest to declare. 

(b) The nature of their interest. 

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest, 
(as defined in Part 4.4 Appendix B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for 
Registration of Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer before the meeting 
to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

 
4.   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
5.   ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR 

QUESTIONS  

 To note that, regarding planning applications to be considered, members of the public 
who have given the requisite notice to Democratic Services will be able to make a 
statement to the Committee immediately before their respective applications are 
considered. There will be a time limit of 3 minutes for each proposal, i.e., 3 minutes for 
the Parish and Town Councils, 3 minutes for the objectors to the proposal and 3 
minutes for the applicant, agent and supporters. This allows a maximum of 9 minutes 
per proposal. 

 
6.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 12) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 16 November 2022 as a 
correct record for signing by the Chair. 

 
7.   SITE VISIT LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR 

DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 There are no site visit applications for determination. 
 



8.   MAIN PLANS LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR 
DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE (Pages 13 - 30) 

 The following applications will be considered at 11am: 
1. 22/03269/FUL - Hare & Hounds, Lansdown Road, Lansdown, Bath, Bath And 

North East Somerset 
2. 22/04513/TCA - Audley House, Park Gardens, Lower Weston, Bath, Bath And 

North East Somerset 
 
9.   NEW PLANNING APPEALS LODGED, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF 

FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES (Pages 31 - 34) 

 The Committee is asked to note the report. 
 
 
 
The Democratic Services Officer for this meeting is Corrina Haskins who can be contacted on  
01225 394357. 
 
Delegated List Web Link: http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-
control/view-and-comment-planning-applications/delegated-report 

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/view-and-comment-planning-applications/delegated-report
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building-control/view-and-comment-planning-applications/delegated-report


Bath and North East 
Somerset Council 

 

 
1 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held 
Wednesday, 16th November, 2022, 2.00 pm 

 
Councillors: Sue Craig (Chair), Sally Davis (Vice-Chair), Paul Crossley, Lucy Hodge, 
Duncan Hounsell, Shaun Hughes, Dr Eleanor Jackson, Hal MacFie, Brian Simmons and 
Rob Appleyard 

  
  
58   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
  
 The Democratic Services Officer read out the emergency evacuation procedure.  
  
59   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
  
 Cllr Rob Appleyard was substituting for Cllr Shelley Bromley.    
  
60   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 There were no declarations of interest.  
  
61   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 
  
 There was no urgent business.  
  
62   ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR 

QUESTIONS 
  
 The Democratic Services Officer informed the meeting that there were a number of 

people wishing to make statements on planning applications and that they would be 
able to do so when these items were discussed.  

  
63   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
  
 It was moved by Cllr Paul Crossley, seconded by Cllr Eleanor Jackson and: 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 19 October 2022 
be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

  
64   SITE VISIT LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR 

DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE 
  
 There were no site visit applications for consideration.   
  
65   MAIN PLANS LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR 

DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE 
  
 The Committee considered:  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 
2 

 
A report by the Head of Planning on various planning applications and an update 
report in relation to items 1, 2 and 3 under the main applications list. 
  
Oral statements by members of the public and representatives.  A copy of the 
speakers’ list is attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes.  
  
RESOLVED that in accordance with the delegated powers, the applications be 
determined as set out in the Main decisions list attached as Appendix 2 to these 
minutes.  
  
 
Item No. 1 Application No: 21/05471/OUT 
 
Site Location: Parcel 5159, Minsmere Road, Keynsham 

The Case Officer introduced the report which was an application for 70 homes; new 
vehicular and pedestrian access on to Minsmere Road, public open space; tree 
planting and habitat creation; site drainage and associated infrastructure with all 
matters reserved apart from the access.  He reminded Members that while the land 
was currently safeguarded, it was proposed for 70 homes in the Local Plan Partial 
Update (LPPU) and there were material considerations which outweighed the 
conflict with current policy as detailed in the report. 

It was noted that the application had been deferred from the previous meeting to 
enable officers to negotiate in relation to the on-site Biodiversity Net Gain (BGN) and 
to clarify the triggers for the planning obligations.  The Case Officer confirmed that 
further negotiations had resulted in an increase in onsite BNG such that there would 
be an overall 12.57% net gain against the emerging policy target of 10%.  He also 
drew attention to the triggers for the various obligations and contributions as detailed 
in the update report. 
 
He confirmed the recommendation that officers be delegated to permit the 
application subject to: 

1. no comments raising new material considerations from the advertisement of 
the application as a departure. 

2. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to cover the 11 heads of terms as 
set out in the report. 

3. the conditions as set out in the report. 

The following public representations were received: 
1. Chris Dolling, applicant, speaking in support of the application. 

 
It was noted that Cllr Andy Wait was unable to attend the meeting to speak as local 
ward member, but he had reiterated his previous objections to the application. 

 
In response to Members’ questions, it was confirmed: 

1. There was a condition in relation to Archaeology Controlled Excavation and 
Historic England would be notified in the event of a significant archaeological 
find during building works.   

2. There was an existing pedestrian exit which connected to manor road 
community woodland but as this was in the ownership of a third party, it could 
not be secured in perpetuity.   

Page 6



 
3 

3. The developer would be required to improve bus stops and enhance bus 
services to Keynsham High Street with a 30-minute frequency. 

4. The target for 10% BGN was a new requirement and so there were not many 
examples to compare the extent to which other developers had provided this 
on or off site.   

5. In order to achieve 10% BGN on site it would have required a reduction of 
housing by approximately one third. 

6. The Council would determine how the contribution of £1.512m would be split 
between enhanced local town centre bus service and liveable neighbourhood 
interventions once the costs of the projects were known.   

7. Highway officers may decide that works could begin in advance of the money 
being received once the terms of the Section 106 had been secured.  In 
relation to the Withies Green site triggers, the majority were due to be 
completed before occupation of the 50th dwelling. 

8. The sustainable transport measures for the two applications were forecast to 
reduce vehicle trips within the study area by 219 during the morning peak 
hour and 180 in the afternoon peak hour. 

9. The estimates for vehicle movements in and out of the site was site specific 
and in this case the estimate was 41 in the morning peak, 31 in the afternoon 
peak and 321 during the whole day.  Surveys were carried out after the 
completion of developments to monitor accuracy.    
 

Cllr Hal MacFie opened the debate as local member and stated that although there 
was a lot to commend the application, he was still concerned about the intensity of 
the housing on the site and was minded to oppose the officers’ recommendation. 
 
Cllr Duncan Hounsell acknowledged the comments raised by Cllr Andy Wait about 
the number of objections in relation to the application but stated that the Committee 
had to judge the application against planning policy and the site was proposed to be 
allocated for 70 homes in the emerging Local Plan Partial Update (LPPU) which was 
likely to be found sound.  He confirmed that he had raised concerns at the previous 
meeting in relation to the offsite BNG and the capacity of the highway network, but 
noted that officers had since negotiated a modest improvement in on-site BGN as 
well as clarifying triggers for transport mitigation measures and he was now minded 
to support the application.   
 
Cllr Sally Davis commended officers on negotiating a good package of planning 
obligations and moved the recommendation to delegate to permit.  This was 
seconded by Cllr Paul Crossley who welcomed the scheme in terms of its delivery of 
affordable housing.  Cllr Eleanor Jackson also stated she was minded to support the 
application although she was concerned about the impact on the off-site maple tree.   
 
Cllr Shaun Hughes acknowledged that the scheme had benefits in terms of 
affordable housing but stated he was still concerned about the level of off-site BGN 
which would not benefit local residents.  Cllr Hodge stated that she had similar 
concerns about the BGN but she was minded to support the application following 
reassurances about the transport mitigation measures. 
 
On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED (8 in favour and 2 against) 
 
RESOLVED that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to: 

1. no comments raising new material considerations from the advertisement of 

Page 7



 
4 

the application as a departure. 
2. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to cover the 11 heads of terms as 

set out in the report. 
3. the conditions as set out in the report. 

 

Item No. 2 Application No: 21/05521/FUL 
 
Site Location: Rising Sun, 58 Lymore Avenue, Twerton, Bath 
 
The Case Officer introduced the report which assessed an application for the 
erection of 5 terraced houses and associated off-street car parking.  He confirmed 
that the commencement of works in relation to the previous application did take 
place and so there was an extant permission for 3 detached dwellings.  Members 
were advised that the provision of a car lift and associated parking had not been 
included in terms of parking standards due to the unreliability of the provision. 
 
He confirmed the recommendation that officers be delegated to permit the 
application subject to: 

a. no comments raising new material considerations from the 
advertisement of the application as a departure. 

b. the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
The following public representations were received: 

1. John White, agent, speaking in support of the application. 
2. Mr and Mrs Chapman, local residents, objecting to the application – read out 

in absence by Cllr Dine Romero. 
 
Cllr Dine Romero in attendance as local ward member raised concerns about the 
proposed development as follows: 

1. The application was for 5 houses, but there was a concern that these could 
be used as HMOs. 

2. There was not sufficient outdoor space for 4-bedroom houses. 
3. The application would result in an over-development of the site and 

overlooking of nearby existing properties. 
4. Access from the car park would be difficult as on-street parking for existing 

houses restricted the flow of traffic.   
5. The development would result in increased parking pressures in the area. 
She asked that the application be refused on the grounds of highway safety, lack 
of amenity for each property, and over development of the site and asked that if 
members were minded to approve the application, a decision be deferred 
pending a site visit. 

 
In response to Members questions, it was confirmed: 

1. The developer could choose not to deliver the parking lifts as they were not 
required to do so by the proposed Section 106 Agreement or a condition.  
Officers had not included the provision in assessing parking standards due to 
concerns about failure and lack of maintenance of car lifts which would lead to 
the parking being inaccessible. 

2. Officers could request details of the noise impacts of the car lift and restrict 
the hours of use if this was considered necessary. 

3. The proposed development was of similar height to nearby buildings.   

Page 8



 
5 

4. The proposed gardens were smaller than those in the surrounding area, but 
officers considered the layout to be an efficient use of the site.   

5. It was not appropriate to compare with other applications as each application 
needed to be considered on its merits.   

6. The current application was for 5 dwelling houses and not for HMOs.  If the 
developer wanted to use the site for HMOs, they would need to apply for 
planning permission for a change of use. 

7. The informal crossing point would occupy a gap in marked parking bays and 
so it would not impact on current parking provision. 

8. In relation to materials, there was a condition which required a sample panel 
to be submitted for approval.  Officers would be looking for the front 
elevations to be finished in a natural Bath stone and an appropriate finish for 
the front walls.    

9. There was a proposed condition (6) to secure an electric charging point. 
10. In terms of refuse collection, there would be waste stores located at the front 

of the property.  There could be an additional condition to ensure that these 
were in place before the dwellings were occupied.  

11. There was case law in relation to Residents Parking Zones which clarified that 
a new development had to be completed before residents could apply for a 
permit.   

 
Cllr Paul Crossley opened the debate as local ward member and stated that the 
density of the development was difficult, and the parking impact needed to be 
considered although he acknowledged that there was good bus connectivity in the 
area.  He welcomed the underground car parking proposal and the electric charging 
point.    
 
Cllr Lucy Hodge moved the officer’s recommendation to delegate to permit subject to 
an additional condition to address concerns about the potential for noise associated 
with the car lift.  This was seconded by Cllr Hounsell.   
 
Cllr Rob Appleyard, in supporting the motion, asked that officers also include an 
additional condition to ensure that waste stores were provided in advance of the 
occupation of the dwellings.   
 
Cllr Shaun Hughes stated that he considered 5 dwellings to be an over development 
of the site and preferred the previous application for 3 dwellings.  Cllr Eleanor 
Jackson stated that she would not support the motion as she also considered the 
application to be an over development of the site and would result in a loss of 
amenity to local residents.   
 
Cllr Lucy Hodge withdrew her motion to delegate to permit with the 2 additional 
conditions, which was then proposed by Cllr Hounsell and seconded by Cllr Davis. 
 
On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED (6 in favour and 4 against and 2 
abstentions). 
 
RESOLVED that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to: 

1. no comments raising new material considerations from the advertisement of 
the application as a departure. 

2. the conditions as set out in the report. 
3. An additional condition to address concerns about the potential for noise 

Page 9



 
6 

associated with the car lift. 
4. An additional condition to ensure that the waste stores were in place in 

advance of the dwellings being occupied.  
 
Item No. 3 Application No: 21/05672/EFUL 

 
Site Location: Former Bath Press Premises, Lower Bristol Road, 
Westmoreland, Bath 
 
The Case Officer introduced the report which assessed an application for a 
residential-led mixed-use development, comprising residential units, provision of 
office floor space, provision of three substations, together with associated 
infrastructure, landscaping, plant equipment, car and cycle parking and access. 
 
He reported the receipt of an additional letter from Bath Preservation Trust 
commenting on the lack of affordable housing and the use of the retained chimney in 
the design and confirmed that these issues had been addressed in the report.  He 
referred to the previous application which had been refused by the committee for the 
following reasons and how these had been addressed in the new application: 

1. Insufficient office floorspace.  The new application included additional office 
floorspace and was now over policy requirement 

2. Failure to include a pedestrian link.  A north-south pedestrian link had been 
reintroduced as part of this scheme. 

3. Loss of 1920s historic chimney.  This would now be retained as part of the 
development 

4. Concerns about level of parking.  The number of car parking spaces remained 
the same at 122 but, since the previous application, the Council was closer to 
adopting the LPPU which had lower parking standards.  The site could be 
justified as being car free, but officers acknowledged the other parking 
pressures in the area.  There was also an enhanced package of sustainable 
transport measures as detailed in the report.   
 

He confirmed the recommendation that officers be delegated to permit the 
application subject to: 

a. no comments raising new material considerations from the advertisement of 
the application as a departure. 

b. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to cover the 12 heads of terms as 
set out in the report. 

c. the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
The following public representations were received: 
1. Anna Sabine, agent, speaking in support of the application. 
 
Cllr June Player in attendance as local ward member stated that this scheme was an 
improvement on the previous application in terms of the retention of the historic 
chimney and footpath and the increased volume of office space but she still had the 
following concerns: 

1. The traffic coming out on to Brook Road should not be able to turn left as this 
was a heavily residential and very narrow road which was already used as a 
rat-run.  

2. There was a shortage of parking in the area and the development could 

Page 10



 
7 

increase demand for on-street parking. 
3. The development would result in overlooking for residents in South View 

Road/Denmark Road and would be more acceptable if the height of the 
building was reduced. 

4. Westmoreland ward had a deficit of parks and green spaces and it was not 
acceptable to offer this provision elsewhere in relation to the development. 

5. The lack of affordable housing was another concern.   
6. The site was in need of redevelopment, but it was important that any proposal 

would enhance the area. 
 
In response to Members questions, it was confirmed: 
1. The 3m footpath/2-way cycleway would cover the entire length of the 

development and the highway would move back into the development site.  The 
traffic island works would be carried out by the developers. 

2. The scheme could not support affordable housing on site at the current time, but 
this would be reviewed at a later date via the viability review mechanism.  This 
may result in a contribution towards affordable housing which could be used 
across the B&NES area and housing officers would decide on the most 
appropriate way to use the contribution.   

3. The viability was determined by the value of the site plus a premium to calculate 
the benchmark land value.  In this case the benchmark value was zero due to 
contamination of the land and the work required to develop the site.  There was 
no suggestion that the developers had overpaid for the site.   

4. The developers had offered a design which retained the historic chimney which 
officers were satisfied with; different design options had not been discussed. 

5. The contribution to the Lower Bristol Road / Windsor Bridge Road crossing was 
in addition to contributions already secured for a crossing at Midland Road in 
relation to the Dick Lovett scheme. 

6. The proposed height of the building was in accordance with policy and officers 
did not consider the building to be overbearing.   

7. The roof gardens were not accessible to the public and it would be for the 
operational management of the site to determine which residents would have 
access.  If required by the Committee, an additional condition could be added to 
request the submission of these details. 

8. There were 2 car club parking spaces and on balance, this was considered to be 
an appropriate amount.  There was no specific E-scooter storage provision as it 
was currently illegal to use a non-scheme E-Scooter. 

9. In relation to green space and whether more could be provided on-site, there was 
a balance between the density of the development and provision of green space.  
Two public open spaces were proposed within the development along with a 
contribution towards other green spaces in the area.   

10. There would be no other contribution towards bus stops/services other than the 
relocation of and improvements to the westbound bus stop. 

11. The design of the building included Juliet balconies. 
 
Cllr Rob Appleyard expressed the view that 2 car club spaces was inadequate and 
there should be additional provision.  He also asked if the provision of E-scooter 
storage could be investigated as it was likely that E-scooters would be legalised in 
the near future. 
 
Cllr Duncan Hounsell stated that he was minded to support the proposal which 
would regenerate a currently unused brownfield site.  He acknowledged that the 

Page 11



 
8 

current application addressed a number of concerns that were raised when the 
previous application was refused.   
 
Cllr Paul Crossley stated that he was still concerned about some issues, he would 
prefer to see balconies that residents could access rather than Juliet balconies, was 
disappointed by the lack of affordable housing and would have liked to have seen 
more green roof space but acknowledged the work of officers in securing the 
package of benefits and moved the recommendation to delegate to permit subject to 
officers exploring the feasibility of additional car club spaces and an amendment to 
condition 15 to make provision for E-scooter storage.  This was seconded by Cllr 
Eleanor Jackson. 
 
Cllr Shaun Hughes stated that, although an improvement from the previous 
application, he was still concerned about the lack of greenspace and affordable 
housing.  Cllr Hal MacFie also expressed concern about the lack of on-site 
greenspace. 
 
On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED unanimous (10 in favour and 0 
against). 
 
RESOLVED that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to: 

a. no comments raising new material considerations from the advertisement of 
the application as a departure. 

b. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to cover the 12 heads of terms as 
set out in the report. 

c. the conditions as set out in the report. 
d. officers exploring the feasibility of additional car club spaces and an 

amendment to condition 15 to make provision for E-scooter storage.  
  
66   NEW PLANNING APPEALS LODGED, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF 

FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES 
  
 The Committee considered the appeals report. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 5.48 pm  
 

Chair  
 

Date Confirmed and Signed  
 

Prepared by Democratic Services 

Page 12



Bath & North East Somerset Council 

MEETING: Planning Committee   

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

MEETING 
DATE: 

14th December 2022 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER: 

Simon de Beer – Head of Planning  

TITLE: APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION  

WARDS: ALL 

BACKGROUND PAPERS:  

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

List of background papers relating to this report of the Head of Planning about applications/proposals for Planning Permission etc.  The 
papers are available for inspection online at http://planning.bathnes.gov.uk/PublicAccess/. 

[1] Application forms, letters or other consultation documents, certificates, notices, correspondence and all drawings submitted by 
and/or on behalf of applicants, Government Departments, agencies or Bath and North East Somerset Council in connection 
with each application/proposal referred to in this Report. 

[2] Department work sheets relating to each application/proposal as above. 

[3] Responses on the application/proposals as above and any subsequent relevant correspondence from: 

(i) Sections and officers of the Council, including: 

Building Control 
Environmental Services 
Transport Development 
Planning Policy, Environment and Projects, Urban Design (Sustainability) 
 

(ii) The Environment Agency 
(iii) Wessex Water 
(iv) Bristol Water 
(v) Health and Safety Executive 
(vi) British Gas 
(vii) Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (English Heritage) 
(viii) The Garden History Society 
(ix) Royal Fine Arts Commission 
(x) Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
(xi) Nature Conservancy Council 
(xii) Natural England 
(xiii) National and local amenity societies 
(xiv) Other interested organisations 
(xv) Neighbours, residents and other interested persons 
(xvi) Any other document or correspondence specifically identified with an application/proposal 
 

[4] The relevant provisions of Acts of Parliament, Statutory Instruments or Government Circulars, or documents produced by the 
Council or another statutory body such as the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan (including waste and minerals policies) 
adopted October 2007  

The following notes are for information only:- 

[1] “Background Papers” are defined in the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 do not include those disclosing 
“Exempt” or “Confidential Information” within the meaning of that Act.  There may be, therefore, other papers relevant to an 
application which will be relied on in preparing the report to the Committee or a related report, but which legally are not required 
to be open to public inspection. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8

http://planning.bathnes.gov.uk/PublicAccess/


[2] The papers identified or referred to in this List of Background Papers will only include letters, plans and other documents 
relating to applications/proposals referred to in the report if they have been relied on to a material extent in producing the 
report. 

[3] Although not necessary for meeting the requirements of the above Act, other letters and documents of the above kinds 
received after the preparation of this report and reported to and taken into account by the Committee will also be available for 
inspection. 

[4] Copies of documents/plans etc. can be supplied for a reasonable fee if the copyright on the particular item is not thereby 
infringed or if the copyright is owned by Bath and North East Somerset Council or any other local authority. 

 

INDEX 

 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

APPLICATION NO. 
& TARGET DATE: 

APPLICANTS NAME/SITE ADDRESS 
and PROPOSAL 

WARD: OFFICER: REC: 
 

 
 

01 22/03269/FUL 
16 December 2022 

The Bath Pub Company Ltd 
Hare & Hounds , Lansdown Road, 
Lansdown, Bath, Bath And North East 
Somerset 
Erection of outside bar and decked 
seating area (Retrospective). 

Lansdown Sam Grant REFUSE 

 
02 22/04513/TCA 

20 December 2022 
Mrs Lucy Hodge 
Audley House , Park Gardens, Lower 
Weston, Bath, Bath And North East 
Somerset 
Weeping Ash Extensive die back- 
Dismantle and Fell. 

Weston Jane Brewer NO 
OBJECTION 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING ON APPLICATIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT 

 

Item No:   01 

Application No: 22/03269/FUL 

Site Location: Hare & Hounds  Lansdown Road Lansdown Bath Bath And North 
East Somerset 

 

 

Ward: Lansdown  Parish: N/A  LB Grade: II 

Ward Members: Councillor Mark Elliott Councillor Lucy Hodge  

Application Type: Full Application 

Proposal: Erection of outside bar and decked seating area (Retrospective). 

Constraints: Article 4 Bath Demolition Wall, Article 4 Reg 7: Estate Agent, Article 4 
HMO, Agric Land Class 1,2,3a, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, 
Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Conservation Area, Policy CP9 
Affordable Housing Zones, Listed Building, MOD Safeguarded Areas, 
Policy NE2A Landscapes and the green set, Policy NE5 Ecological 
Networks, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,  

Applicant:  The Bath Pub Company Ltd 

Expiry Date:  16th December 2022 

Case Officer: Sam Grant 

To view the case click on the link here. 

 
REPORT 
This application seeks permission for erection of an outside bar and installation of a 
decking area within the garden curtilage of the public house premises known as the Hare 
and Hounds.  
 
The Hare and Hounds is a Grade II listed building located within the Bath Conservation 
Area and World Heritage Site. The site is situated outside of the Green Belt. 
 

Page 15

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webforms/planning/details.html?refval=22/03269/FUL#details_Section


The development has already been implemented and has previously been given a 
temporary consent for a period of 1 year; that permission expired on 1st August 2022. The 
current application is for the permanent retention of the outside bar and decking area, with 
no changes proposed. 
 
The proposal mimics (in both terms of location and scale) the development the applicant 
gained retrospective temporary consent for in 2021 and a proposal put forward by the 
applicant as part of a request for pre-application advice (Pre-app) in 2018. In response to 
the 2018 pre-app, the applicant was advised by the Council the proposal was 
unacceptable in principle and that officer support for the scheme was unlikely to be 
granted.   
 
This request for advice from the Council was made prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Notwithstanding the advice given by the Council in 2018, and in the knowledge that 
permission was required for the works, the outside bar and decking area were erected 
without the benefit planning permission in November / December 2020; at which point an 
enforcement complaint was submitted to the Council for investigation. Pre-application 
advice was provided to the applicant in March 2021 following the submission of an 
enforcement complaint in relation to the works.  
 
The pre-application advice determined that the proposal for the outside bar and 
installation of decking was unacceptable in principle owing to the identified harm to the 
listed building and its setting and resultant impact on the character of the wider 
conservation area. The 2021 pre-app advice was consistent with the advice given in 2018.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
17/05976/FUL - PERMIT - 6 February 2018 - Relocation of car park vehicular access 
(Retrospective) 
 
 21/01844/FUL - PERMIT - 15 July 2021 - Erection of outside bar and associated decked 
seating area (Retrospective). - Temporary Permission (expired 1st August 2022) 
 
21/01845/LBA - CON - 26 July 2021 - External alterations for the erection of outside bar 
and associated decked seating area (Regularisation). - Temporary Consent (expired 1st 
August 2022) 
 
22/03270/LBA - Withdrawn - 25 November 2022 - Erection of outside bar and decked 
seating area (Retrospective).  
 
SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS 
Conservation 
 
The Hare & Hound is a public house dating c.1690 with substantial alterations including 
the subdivision of the adjoining cottage in the early 20th century. It's in a semi-rural 
location with its frontage onto Lansdown Road and its rear overlooking the valley beyond. 
 
The size, scale and material of the decked area is considerable, covering nearly the entire 
area of lower terrace, which was previously laid to grass. The decking is considered 
visually prominent, incongruous feature and by expanding development to create a more 

Page 16



formalised setting area it is detrimental to the semi-rural and green setting, which 
contributes to the setting of the listed building. I do not support the argument raised in the 
Heritage Statement that the 'decking is an entirely consistent characteristic of the site's 
use as a pub'. Picnic bench seating could be provided on the grass without the need for 
decking as is seen with seating towards the northern boundary. 
 
As with our previous comments the outside bar is considered out of keeping with the listed 
building and its setting. It is not considered the outside bar is acceptable due to its design, 
material, and location. It is in a prominent position in views from the public house 
overlooking the valley beyond. It detrimental impact is compounded by the large decking 
area. 
 
The proposed development would cumulatively cause less than substantial harm to the 
setting of the listed building and the character and appearance of the conservation area. It 
is not considered that there are sufficient public benefits demonstrated which outweigh the 
level of harm caused and therefore the proposal is contrary to paragraph 202 of the NPPF 
and Policy HE1 of the Placemaking Plan. 
 
Highways Development Control 
 
The applicant seeks retrospective permission for the erection of an outside bar and 
associated decked seating area at the Hare and Hounds public house, Lansdown Road, 
Lansdown. The site was subject to a similar retrospective application (app no. 
21/01844/FUL) for which previous comments were provided by HDM which requested a 
financial contribution of £4,351.00 to cover the cost of a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) if 
the outside bar was to remain permanent. 
 
The bar and decking were granted temporary permission via application reference 
21/01844/FUL, which an expiry date of 1st August 2022. 
Concerns were raised within HDMs response to the previous application that the 
additional outdoor floorspace, will increase the number of customers which will result in an 
increase in the number of on-street, parking activities in the vicinity of the application site 
which would affect highway safety and/or residential amenity, especially during the public 
houses' busier periods. Officers considered previously that this will exacerbate the current 
on-street parking issue observed during the visit to the application site. These concerns 
remain for this application for the retention of the outdoor bar and decking area. 
 
The HDM response to application reference 21/01844/FUL, was that on the assumption 
that the works are proposed to be a permanent feature, officers seek a financial 
contribution of £4,351.00 to cover the cost of a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) the aim of 
which will be to prohibit inappropriate on-street, car parking activities. 
 
HDM advised previously that a Section 106 Agreement would be required to secure the 
financial contribution which remains the case for this application. 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
No Objection  
 
Consultation response from Ward Cllr Mark Elliot - 27th October 2022 

Page 17



 
"I refer to the above planning application. Given the large public interest in the application, 
and the considerable economic pressure that the hospitality trade is under at the present 
time, I believe it would be preferable to get the perspective of the planning committee on 
any perceived harm measured against the claimed benefits. If you're minded to refuse, 
please could it be referred to the chair for "call in"." 
 
3rd Party Representations  
 
133 Comments in Support - Summarised below:  
 
o Decking area provides outside seating area  
o Decking can not be seen from road  
o Does not affect the appearance of the Pub 
o Decking provides a save environment for customers to each and drink outside  
o Excellent facility for the local community  
o Hidden from the Valley  
o Appear to be well constructed and maintained 
o Natural evaluation of the Pub  
o Challenging time for the hospitality industry  
o Not an eyesore or obstruction to anyone  
o Development would make the pub more accessible  
o Far too few outdoor spaces in bath  
o Very littles disruption from the Pub 
o Refusal of application would be anti-social  
o Decking is significant distance from the Listed Building 
o Not as prominent as other development in the valley  
o Great for families  
o Secures local employment  
o Local area has no other facilities 
o Does not overlook neighbouring houses 
o Very beneficial for mental health 
o Development is walkable distance for people in a large surrounding area  
o Lack of local services  
o Real asset for the local area  
o Good use of space 
o Benefit those who are high risk of Covid  
o No valid reason why the council should turn it down 
o If decking wasn't there, the same amount of people would be sitting on picnic table 
or on the grass as before  
o Reduces car use 
o Development Not overlooked 
o Safer to use the garden  
o Attracts tourists 
o Good views of Bath 
o No additional traffic issues  
 
3 Comments in Objection Summarised below: 
 
o Eyesore in a beautiful area  

Page 18



o How can you live above a night club  
o Dangerous parking, especially near bus stops  
o More outside seating means more cars 
 
POLICIES/LEGISLATION 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is national policy which must be 
considered by the Council together with the related guidance given in the Planning 
Practice Guidance (PPG). The following sections of the NPPF are of most relevance; 
 
Section 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 
Section 9: Promoting sustainable transport 
Section 12: Achieving well-designed places 
Section 15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  
Section 16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
The statutory Development Plan for B&NES comprises: 
 
- Core Strategy (July 2014) 
- Placemaking Plan (July 2017) 
- B&NES Local Plan (2007) - only saved Policy GDS.1 relating to 4 part implemented 
sites 
- Joint Waste Core Strategy 
- Made Neighbourhood Plans 
 
Core Strategy: 
 
The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the Council 
on 10th July 2014. The following policies of the Core Strategy are relevant to the 
determination of this application:  
 
B4: The World Heritage Site and its Setting  
DW1: District Wide Spatial Strategy 
CP5: Flood Risk Management 
CP6: Environmental quality 
 
Placemaking Plan: 
 
The Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset was formally adopted by the 
Council on 13th July 2017. The following policies of the Placemaking Plan are relevant to 
the determination of this application:  
 
D1: General urban design principles 
D2: Local character and distinctiveness 
D3: Urban fabric 
D5: Building design 
D6: Amenity 
D8: Lighting 
HE1: Historic Environment  
NE1: Development and Green Infrastructure 
NE2: Conserving and Enhancing the Landscape and Landscape Character  

Page 19



NE2A: Landscape Setting of Settlements 
NE3: Sites, Species and Habitats 
NE5: Ecological Networks 
NE6: Trees and Woodland Conservation 
ST.7: Transport requirements for managing development 
SU1: Sustainable drainage 
 
There is a duty placed on the Council under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 'In considering whether to grant planning permission for 
development which affects a listed building or its setting' to 'have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural 
or historic interest which it possesses.' 
 
There is a duty placed on the Council under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the surrounding conservation area when 
determining an application for planning permission. 
 
LOW CARBON AND SUSTAINABLE CREDENTIALS 
 
The policies contained within the development plan are aimed at ensuring development is 
sustainable and that the impacts on climate change are minimised and, where necessary, 
mitigated. A number of policies specifically relate to measures aimed at minimising carbon 
emissions and impacts on climate change. The application has been assessed against the 
policies as identified and these have been fully taken into account in the recommendation 
made. 
 
OFFICER ASSESSMENT 
Scheme of Delegation  
 
A Ward Councillor (Cllr Mark Elliott) requested that should the officer be minded to refuse 
the application, then it should be considered by the Planning Committee. Planning policy 
reasons were given stating objections to the application. In accordance with the Councils 
Scheme of Delegation, this application was referred to the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Planning Committee whose comments are as follows:  
 
Vice Chair:  
 
I have looked at this application carefully noting the comments from both third party & 
statutory consultees. The issues raised have been addressed as the application has been 
assessed against relevant planning policies & the impact on the listed building & 
conservation area i.e. is the harm outweighed by public benefit is clearly a debatable 
point. 
 
This would benefit from debate in the public arena, therefore I recommend the application 
be determined by the planning committee. 
 
Chair: 
 

Page 20



I have reviewed this application and note the comments, both for and against, by statutory 
consultees and other third parties. Harm to a heritage asset - the listed public house - has 
been raised as an objection by the conservation officer and graded as "less than 
substantial". I believe that it would be beneficial for the planning committee to review, and 
debate in public, whether the public benefits listed within the proposal outweigh that harm.  
 
The main planning considerations are:  
 
o Character and Appearance  
o Impact on the Listed Building and its setting  
o Impact on the Character of the Conservation area 
o Residential Amenity  
o Highway Safety  
 
Character and appearance, impact on the Listed Building and its setting and impact on the 
Conservation Area 
 
With respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area the Council has a 
statutory requirement under Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of that conservation area.  
 
The Council has a statutory requirement under Section 66 (1)of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in considering whether to grant listed building 
consent for any works to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building  
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
In this case, the proposals are considered to represent inappropriate and incongruous 
development, having a detrimental impact on the setting of the listed building and on the 
character and appearance of this part of the Bath Conservation Area, contrary to the 
requirements and objectives of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990, section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), and policy HE1 
of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan. 
 
The outside bar, by virtue of its location, scale and the materials used, is considered 
visually prominent and incongruous. The bar is considered to detract from the listed 
building and presents overdevelopment of the site, it has also been noted there have been 
many extensions on the application site which have had a cumulative detrimental impact 
on the listed building. The various extensions are considered to have an awkward 
relationship with each other and the principal building. The permanent retention of the 
outside bar would exacerbate this issue and would result in further detrimental impact on 
the protected building.   
 
The size, scale and material of the decked area is considerable, covering nearly the entire 
area of the lower terrace, which was previously laid with grass. The decking is considered 
visually prominent, incongruous feature and by expanding built-form to create a more 
formalised setting area it is detrimental to the semi-rural and green setting, which 
contributes to the setting of the listed building. Owing to its scale and the use of a uniform 
material, the decking appears visually jarring and overly dominant on the site.  When 
added to the extent of timber decking already installed on the upper terrace of the garden 

Page 21



area, the visual impact of the development is compounded and is considered to represent 
and further contribute towards overdevelopment of the application site. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 199 of the NPPF, when considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight 
should be given to the asset's conservation. This is irrespective of whether any potential 
harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its 
significance. Paragraph 202 of the NPPF also provides that 'Where a development 
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage 
asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, 
where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.' 
 
With regards to the less than substantial harm caused to the setting of the Listed Building 
and the Conservation Area, this must be weighed against any public benefit. The applicant 
has requested that due consideration be given to the perceived public benefits of the 
proposal, these are addressed below: 
 
Heritage Benefits of improved viability/retention of the Pub and Community Benefits 
 
It is noted that the decked seating area provides an additional usable seating area for 
customers, therefore increasing the potential for income to the business. However, the 
provision of a seating area atop of the decking is considered to be a public benefit of 
limited weight given that an outdoor seating area on the grassed area could reasonably be 
provided to the same effect, and the overall function of the pub is not contingent on the 
provision of a decked seating area and bar. Whilst it is understood that an outdoor seating 
area and bar may provide some uplift to the existing business, which in turn contributes to 
the local economy, the contribution is limited given the relative scale of the business. 
Additionally, as aforementioned, outdoor seating could reasonably be provided on the 
existing grassed area without the requirement for a deck.  
 
The applicant has referred to an appeal decision (APP/Y3615/C/20/3259273) in the 
justification of this perceived public benefit. Whilst it is noted that the appeal scheme and 
the one proposed under this application share similarities, the development subject to the 
appeal was not within the setting of a Listed Building, as such the inspector did not (and 
was not required to) undertake the public benefit assessment outlined in Paragraph 202 of 
the NPPF required in this application.  
 
Support for Local Business and Provision of Additional Employment 
 
The applicant has stated that the bar and decking area subject to this application supports 
7.5 Full Time Equivalent employees, and the removal of the decking and bar would result 
in these staff no longer being required.   
 
With regards to the decking, as outlined above, prior to the development taking place, the 
area occupied by the decking was used as an outside seating area, and should the 
decking be removed, there is nothing preventing the applicant using the area for outdoor 
seating. Therefore, it is considered the removal of the decking should not have an impact 
on the staffing requirements of the pub to serve this area. 
 

Page 22



Moving on to the bar, it is acknowledged that the potential removal of the bar could have 
an impact on the employment numbers of the pub. There is also an acknowledgement that 
the provision of an outdoor bar area is likely to provide some uplift in customer footfall. 
However, if the garden continues to be used as outdoor seating as it was prior to the 
installation of the decking, the numbers of customers at the pub should not be severely 
impacted. The customers using the seating area as before would still require to be served, 
therefore staff would still be required to serve those customers in the bar located within 
the main pub building. Taking this into account, in this case, it is considered that limited 
weight should be given to the potential limited loss of employment should the decking and 
bar be removed. 
 
Improved ability for the ability for the public to access important views 
 
The applicant has argued that a perceived public benefit of the proposed retention of the 
decking and bar is it results in improved ability for the public to access important views.  
 
Whist it is appreciated the view can be enjoyed while customers use the decking, the 
decking is not necessary to facilitate the enjoyment of the views by customers and has not 
created a view/vista that did not already exist.  
 
Improved supervision of Children in the Play area  
 
The applicant has argued that as the decking would result in customers and staff being 
outside for a greater part of the year, then there would be a greater level of supervision of 
the children using the playground and, on this basis, this should be considered material 
public benefit.  
The officer is not aware of a children's playground within the boundaries of the Pub. 
Notwithstanding this, the potential supervision of children would be considered a private 
benefit for the use of the pub. 
 
Improved Safety and Improved Access 
 
Finally, the applicant has argued that the decking and bar has improved the accessibility 
of the garden for customers who have mobility issues, and this should be considered a 
material public benefit. However, the applicant acknowledges that the decking is currently 
only accessible via two staircases. This would result in many customers with mobility 
issues not using the decking or outside bar as they would have no means to access it. It is 
appreciated that the level surface of the decking would be easier to navigate for people 
with mobility issues, however given the garden area it replaced was relatively flat and the 
limited amount of people with mobility issues that would be able to access it, it can only be 
attributed limited weight. 
 
Heritage Conclusion   
 
The Council has a statutory requirement under Section 66 (1)of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in considering whether to grant listed building 
consent for any works to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building  
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
Taking account of the above and in this instance the proposed works would fail to 

Page 23



preserve the special interest of the listed building and as such this proposal would not 
meet this requirement.  
 
With respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area the Council has a 
statutory requirement under Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or  appearance of that conservation area. Taking account of the 
above and in this instance the proposed works will not preserve nor enhance this part of 
the Bath Conservation Area and as such this proposal fails to meet this requirement. 
 
Officers accept and acknowledge that there are some public benefits to the proposed 
scheme. These include:  
 
o the limited uplift in custom to the pub, thus providing a boost to the local economy 
o limited additional employment in relation to the provision of an outdoor bar only 
o limited improved accessibility in the outdoor area 
 
Paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework details that where a proposal is 
considered to harm a designated heritage asset, great weight must be given to the asset's 
conservation. When balancing the public benefits above, officers have had regard to 
paragraph 199 within the context of paragraph 202 of the NPPF and the starting point 
must be that the balance is tipped in favour of conserving the designated heritage asset.  
 
In respect to the less than substantial harm to the Listed Building (which must be given 
great weight), the public benefits identified are considered to be limited and would not 
individually or cumulatively outweigh the less than substantial harm identified. 
 
In respect to the less than substantial to the less than substantial harm to the 
Conservation area (which must be given great weight) the public benefits identified are 
considered to be limited and would not individually or cumulatively outweigh the less than 
substantial harm identified. 
 
As such, the proposal is contrary to policy HE1 of the Bath and North East Somerset 
Placemaking Plan and part 16 of the NPPF. 
  
Residential Amenity  
 
With regards to the impact of the proposals on residential amenity, there is concern that 
the development proposals could lead to increased noise, traffic, and on-street parking 
issues. Several objection comments have been received which focus on residents' 
concerns regarding impact on residential amenity and these comments been given due 
consideration. The application site lies within a residential area of Lansdown. Several 
residential properties are located close-by on Lansdown Road and Lansdown Park; the 
closest of these being 'Northlew', 'Wyvern House', 'Bredon', 'Granville', 'Gables', 
'Whispers' and 'Goodwin House'. It is expected that any increased noise as a result of the 
development proposals would particularly affect residents of these houses, as well as 
(potentially) residents of houses located a little further away depending on the nature of 
the noise and amount of noise that is generated. 
 

Page 24



The council accept that that proposal would result in a degree of intensification of the use 
of the rear garden of the Pub, but given the fact the garden was previously used as 
outside seating and the hours of use of the bar could reasonably be controlled by 
condition, it is considered given the design, scale, massing and siting of the proposed 
development the proposal would not cause significant harm to the amenities of any 
occupiers or adjacent occupiers through loss of light, overshadowing, overbearing impact, 
loss of privacy, noise, smell, traffic or other disturbance. The proposal accords with policy 
D6 of the Placemaking Plan for Bath and North East Somerset (2017) and part 12 of the 
NPPF. 
 
Highways 
 
With regards to the impact of the proposals on the surround highways there is concern 
that the development proposals could lead to increased notice, traffic and on-street 
parking issues; these issues were raised in 3rd party objections to the application.   
 
Concerns were raised within HDMs response to the previous application that the 
additional outdoor floorspace, will increase the number of customers which will result in an 
increase in the number of on-street, parking activities in the vicinity of the application site 
which would affect highway safety and/or residential amenity, especially during the public 
houses' busier periods. Officers considered previously that this will exacerbate the current 
on-street parking issue observed during the visit to the application site. These concerns 
remain for this application for the retention of the outdoor bar and decking area. 
 
The HDM response to application reference 21/01844/FUL, was that on the assumption 
that the works are proposed to be a permanent feature, officers seek a financial 
contribution of £4,351.00 to cover the cost of a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) the aim of 
which will be to prohibit inappropriate on-street, car parking activities. 
 
HDM advised previously that a Section 106 Agreement would be required to secure the 
financial contribution which remains the case for this application.  The applicant has 
agreed to enter into a S106 agreement in the event that the application is approved.  
 
Low Carbon and Sustainable Credentials  
 
The policies contained within the development plan are aimed at ensuring development is 
sustainable and that the impacts on climate change are minimised and, where necessary, 
mitigated. A number of policies specifically relate to measures aimed at minimising carbon 
emissions and impacts on climate change. This application involves a listed building and 
has been assessed against the relevant policies and guidance as identified, and these 
have been fully taken into account in the recommendation made. An informative will be 
added to advise the applicants to consider sustainable construction when undertaking the 
development and consider using measures aimed at minimising carbon emissions and 
impacts on climate change. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty requires public authorities to have regard to section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010. Officers have had due consideration to section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 and have concluded that, the refusal of this application is not 

Page 25



considered to adversely impact upon any protected groups, or neighbouring residents. 
Particular regard has been given to the perceived improvement of the access to the Pub's 
outside seating area to persons with impaired mobility which has been put forwards by the 
applicant as a public benefit. It is appreciated that the level surface of the decking would 
be easier to navigate for people with mobility issues, however given the garden area it 
replaced was relatively flat and the limited amount of people with mobility issues that 
would be able to access it. As such, the Council has complied with its Public Sector 
Equality Duty during the assessment of this planning application. 
 
Other Matters 
 
As this is retrospective application, should the application be refused, the Councils 
Planning Enforcement team would have to assess the expediency of pursuing formal 
Enforcement Action.  
 
Conclusion  
 
The proposal by reason of its design, siting, scale, massing, layout and materials is 
considered to result in harm to both the designated heritage asset and to the wider 
Conservation Area. This harm is not outweighed by public benefit as concluded above and 
is therefore contrary to policy HE1 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan 
(2017) and part 16 of the NPPF, therefore the Officer recommendation is REFUSE. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

REFUSE 
 
REASON(S) FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1 The proposal by reason of its design, siting, scale, massing, layout and materials is 
considered to result in less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed building and 
the character and appearance of the wider Conservation Area. This harm is not 
outweighed by public benefit and the application is therefore contrary to Policy HE1 of the 
Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan (2017) and part 16 of the NPPF. 
 
PLANS LIST: 
 
 1 This Decision relates to the following plans: 
 
Drawing   15 Aug 2022   SMH 41 17 16-01   TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY     
Drawing   15 Aug 2022   SMH 41 17 16-30   PROPOSED PLAN     
Drawing   15 Aug 2022   SMH 41 17 16-31   PROPOSED BAR PLAN AND 
DECKING     
OS Extract   15 Aug 2022   SMH 471 17 16-32   SITE LOCATION PLAN   
 
 2 In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied 
with the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Notwithstanding 
informal advice offered by the Local Planning Authority the submitted application was 
unacceptable for the stated reasons and the applicant was advised that the application 
was to be recommended for refusal. Despite this the applicant chose not to withdraw the 
application and having regard to the need to avoid unnecessary delay the Local Planning 

Page 26



Authority moved forward and issued its decision. In considering whether to prepare a 
further application the applicant's attention is drawn to the original discussion/negotiation. 
 
 3 In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied 
with the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Notwithstanding 
informal advice offered by the Local Planning Authority the submitted application was 
unacceptable for the reasons outlined above and the applicant was advised that the 
application was to be recommended for refusal unless amendments to the scheme were 
supplied. The applicant was unable to submit revisions in a timely manner, and did not 
choose to withdraw the application. Having regard to the need to avoid unnecessary delay 
the Local Planning Authority moved forward and issued its decision. 
 
 4 Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. Whilst the above application 
has been refused by the Local Planning Authority please note that CIL applies to all 
relevant planning permissions granted on or after this date. Thus any successful appeal 
against this decision may become subject to CIL. Full details are available on the 
Council's website www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Item No:   02 

Application No: 22/04513/TCA 

Site Location: Audley House  Park Gardens Lower Weston Bath Bath And North 
East Somerset 

 

 

Ward: Weston  Parish: N/A  LB Grade: II 

Ward Members: Councillor Shelley Bromley Councillor Ruth Malloy  

Application Type: Tree Works Notification  in Con Area 

Proposal: Weeping Ash Extensive die back- Dismantle and Fell. 

Constraints: Conservation Area,  

Applicant:  Mrs Lucy Hodge 

Expiry Date:  20th December 2022 

Case Officer: Jane Brewer 

To view the case click on the link here. 

 
REPORT 
REASON FOR REPORTING NOTIFICATION TO COMMITTEE: 
 
The notification relates to a Councillor's trees. 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
This notification relates to trees located within the Bath Conservation Area. 
 
The proposal is to fell a weeping ash which is located within the front garden and 
overhanging Park Gardens. 
 
Six weeks notice must be submitted to the Council for tree works or tree felling within a 
conservation area if the tree has a trunk diameter of 7.5cm or over (when measured 1.5m 
above ground level) and where exceptions do not apply. 
 

Page 28

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webforms/planning/details.html?refval=22/04513/TCA#details_Section


The purpose of a tree notification is to give the Council the opportunity to consider 
whether a Tree Preservation Order should be made to protect the tree. 
 
The following criteria are used to assess whether trees are worthy of a Tree Preservation 
Order: 
 
1. visibility to the general public 
2. overall health, vigour and appearance 
3. suitability of their location and anticipated future management 
4. special factors such as contribution to the character of a conservation area, World 
Heritage Site setting or overall green infrastructure; their rarity; their ecological 
contribution and whether they have historical significance such as in the case of veteran 
trees. 
 
SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No public comments have been received. 
 
POLICIES/LEGISLATION 
 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (in particular sections 197-214 as amended) 
Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012 
 
LOW CARBON AND SUSTAINABLE CREDENTIALS 
 
The policies contained within the development plan are aimed at ensuring development is 
sustainable and that the impacts on climate change are minimised and, where necessary, 
mitigated. A number of policies specifically relate to measures aimed at minimising carbon 
emissions and impacts on climate change. The application has been assessed against the 
policies as identified and these have been fully taken into account in the recommendation 
made. 
 
OFFICER ASSESSMENT 
 
The proposed felling of the Ash is because it has Ash Dieback which is a fungal disease 
which is now widespread through the district. 
The Tree Council developed an Action Plan Toolkit and adopted the following 
categorisation for Ash Dieback: 
 
Ash Health Class 1 - 100%-76% remaining canopy   
Ash Health Class 2 - 75%-51% remaining canopy   
Ash Health Class 3 - 50%-26% remaining canopy   
Ash Health Class 4 - 25%-0% remaining canopy 
 
The Weeping Ash which is the subject of this notice is considered to be within health class 
3 category and is unlikely to recover due to the severity of the symptoms. The branches 
overhang Park Gardens which is a private road but with public pedestrian access.  
 

Page 29



The branch structure and potentially the trunk becomes mechanically weaker over time 
with an increased risk of uncharacteristic breakages. The removal of the tree is therefore 
considered a proportionate approach.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
The removal of the tree is considered a proportionate approach in light of the location of 
the tree and severity of the infection. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

NO OBJECTION 
 
 

Page 30



 

 

 
 
APPEALS LODGED 
 
App. Ref:  22/01538/FUL 
Location:  Landscaped Verge West Of Valley View Close Valley View Road 
Charlcombe Bath Bath And North East Somerset 
Proposal:  Erection of a single storey stepped bungalow. 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 23 June 2022 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 23 November 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 

MEETING: Planning Committee  

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NUMBER 

MEETING 
DATE: 

14th December 2022 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER: 

Simon de Beer – Head of Planning 

 

TITLE: NEW PLANNING APPEALS, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF 
FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES    

WARD: ALL 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: None 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 

 

APPEALS DECIDED 
 
App. Ref:  21/01560/TPO 
Location:  Orchard House Bristol Road Chew Stoke Bristol Bath And North 
East Somerset 
Proposal:  T01-Copper beech-Reduce height and spread of crown by 2 metres 
to provide more light to garden. 
T02-Beech-Reduce height and spread of crown by 2 metres to provide more light to 
garden. 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 18 May 2021 
Decision Level: Non-Planning applications 
Appeal Lodged: 16 March 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 4 November 2022 

 
 
 
App. Ref:  21/02541/FUL 
Location:  136 North Road Combe Down Bath Bath And North East Somerset 
BA2 5DL 
Proposal:  Works include internal and external alterations including the 
replacement of the rear utility extension with a new full width extension with bifold doors, 
forming of new openings and filling in of existing door and window openings, removal of  
UPVC doors and windows, insertion of a new traditionally detailed timber casement and 
sash window in the rear elevation, removal of modern joinery, reinstatement of period 
details including cornices and chimneypieces, insertion of a en suite at first floor and 
reconfiguration of existing outbuilding to form garden studio.  
The proposals seek to change the use class of the building from C4 to C3 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 26 November 2021 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 25 April 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 7 November 2022 

 
 
 
App. Ref:  21/02542/LBA 
Location:  136 North Road Combe Down Bath Bath And North East Somerset 
BA2 5DL 
Proposal:  Works include internal and external alterations including the 
replacement of the rear utility extension with a new full width extension with bifold doors, 
forming of new openings and filling in of existing door and window openings, removal of  
UPVC doors and windows, insertion of a new traditionally detailed timber casement and 
sash window in the rear elevation, removal of modern joinery, reinstatement of period 

Page 32



 

 

details including cornices and chimneypieces and reconfiguration of existing outbuilding 
to form garden studio. The proposals seek to change the use class of the building from 
C4 to C3 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 26 November 2021 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 25 April 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 7 November 2022 

 
 
 
App. Ref:  21/03754/FUL 
Location:  Parcel 1120 Bungays Hill High Littleton Bristol Bath And North East 
Somerset 
Proposal:  Erection of a general purpose farm building 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 7 October 2021 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 15 June 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Allowed 
Appeal Decided Date: 10 November 2022 

 
 
 
App. Ref:  21/04202/FUL 
Location:  Roman City Guest House 18 Raby Place Bathwick Bath Bath And 
North East Somerset 
Proposal:  Change of use from bed and breakfast (Use Class C1) to 
commercial holiday let accommodation for up to 25 people (Use Class Sui Generis). 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 18 November 2021 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 10 June 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 15 November 2022 

 
 
 
App. Ref:  22/00723/FUL 
Location:  Roman City Guest House 18 Raby Place Bathwick Bath Bath And 
North East Somerset 
Proposal:  Change of Use from Bed and Breakfast (Use Class C1) to 
commercial holiday let accommodation for up to 12 people (Use Class Sui Generis) 
(Resubmission). 
Decision:  REFUSE 

Page 33



 

 

Decision Date: 13 April 2022 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 10 June 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 15 November 2022 

 
 
 
App. Ref:  21/04026/FUL 
Location:  Yew Tree House Ostlings Lane Bathford Bath Bath And North East 
Somerset 
Proposal:  Erection of a single bungalow dwelling to land to the south 
Decision:  REFUSE 
Decision Date: 13 October 2021 
Decision Level: Delegated 
Appeal Lodged: 2 August 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 16 November 2022 

 
 
Case Ref: 21/00070/UNDEV 
Location: Site Of 15 And 16 Hampton Row Bathwick Bath Bath And North East 
Somerset 
Breach: Failure to comply with condition 2 of listed building consent 14/04369/LBA and 
the unauthorised and inappropriate use of an external wall material (reconstituted stone) 
without listed building consent. 
Notice Date: 25 October 2021  
Appeal Lodged: 7 December 2021 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
Appeal Decided Date: 21 November 2022 

 
 
Case Ref: 20/00003/HHEDGE 
Location: 1 Tiledown, Temple Cloud, Bristol, BS39 5DW 
Description: Appeal against the Council’s decision not to issue a remedial notice to 
reduce a Leylandii hedge growing between 1 and 2 Tiledown. 
Appeal Lodged: 5 May 2022 
Appeal Decision: Appeal Allowed  
Appeal Decided Date: 23 November 2022  
 
 
 
 

Page 34


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 Main Plans List - Applications for Planning Permission Etc for Determination by the Committee
	9 New Planning Appeals Lodged, Decisions Received and Dates of Forthcoming Hearings/Inquiries



